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In re KIRBY,
(District Court, D. South Dakota. January 19, 1898.)

1. ATTORNEYS—DISBARMENT—CONVICTION OF INFAMOUS GFFENSE.
A court will disbar an attorney convicted of an offense involving moral
turpitude, and to which congress has attached an infamous punishment,
though it is not a felony.

2. SaMe—EFPECT oF WRIT OF ERROR.

The suing out of a writ of error to review a judgment of a federal cowt
convicting an attorney of an offense, and the granting of a supersedeas
thereon, do not vacate the judgment, so as to prevent its being ground for
the defendant’s disbarment.

Proceeding for the disbarment of Joe Kirby.

S. B. Van Buskirk, for petitioners.
Joe Kirby, in pro. per.

CARLAND, District-Judge. On January 7, 1898, J. D. Elliott,
United States attorney for this district, filed in this court his sworn
petition, wherein it is charged that Joe Kirby, an attorney of this
court, was at the April, 1897, term of said court duly convicted upon an
indictment charging said Joe Kirby with having received and had in his
possession and control, with intent to convert the same to his own use,
certain postage stamps of the United States, he (the said Kirby)
knowing the same to have been theretofore feloniously stolen and
carried away from a certain post office of the United States; that on
June 25, 1897, being a day of said April term, said Joe Kirby was
duly sentenced upon said conviction to a term of two years in the
penitentiary of South Dakota. Said petition prayed the judgment of
this court in the premises, and that said Joe Kirby be disbarred and
removed from his office as an attorney of this court. Upon the filing
of said petition, said Joe Kirby was cited to appear before this court
on the 17th day of January, 1898, and show cause why the prayer
of the petition should not be granted. On the return day respondent
appeared in his own behalf, and S. B: Van Buskirk, assistant United
States attorney, in support of the petition.

Respondent first objected to the jurisdiction of the court on the
ground that the matter charged against him could not be heard except
at a special or general term of this court, and then filed an answer
denying generally the allegations of the petition, except as said allega-
tions might be admitted by other matters set forth in the answer.
The answer then set forth that a writ of error had been sued out of
the supreme court of the United States to reverse the judgment of
conviction set forth in the petition, and that a supersedeas had been
granted pending the decision of said supreme court, which writ of
error was still pending and undetermined. A certified copy of the
proceedings of this court in the case of the United States against Joe
Kirby was introduced in evidence in support of the petition, from
which it appears that the allegations of the petition are true. This
court will take judicial notice, upon its attention being called thereto,
of the issuance of the writ of error and the granting of a supersedeas.
No other evidence was introduced on either side.
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Respondent contends that the petition should be dismissed for the
following reasons: (1) The court has no jurisdiction, for the reasons
stated in the opening of the case in regard to the terms of court.
(2) The offense of which respondent was convicted is not a felony. (3)
The suing out of a writ of error and the granting of a supersedeas
have rendered the judgment of conviction inoperative for any purpose,
‘pending the hearing on said writ.

There is no force in the first point, as the record of the court shows
that the regular October, 1897, term of this court had been regularly
adjourned from time to time until the date of the hearing herein men-
tioned.

In considering the second point, it may be well to consider briefly
the power of this court over its attorneys after it has once admitted
them to practice before it. In Ex parte Wall, 107 U. 8. 273, 2 Sup.
Ct. 575, the supreme court said:

“1t is 1aid down in all the books in which the subject i treated that a court
has power to exercise a summary jurisdiction over its attorneys to compel them
to act honestly towards their clients, and to punish them by fine and imprison-
ment for misconduct and contempts, and in gross cases of misconduct to strike
their names from the roll. If regularly convicted of a felony, an attorney will
be struck off the roll as of course, whatever the felony may be, because he is

rendered infamous. If convicted of a misdemeanor, which imports fraud or
dishonesty, the same course will be taken,”

There is no statutory definition of felonies in the legislation of the
United States. Reagan v. U. 8, 157 U. 8. 303, 15 Sup. Ct. 610. The
supreme court has held, however, in Ex parte Wilson, 114 U. 8. 417,
5 Sup. Ct, 935, and in Mackin v. U, 8, 117 U. 8. 850, 6 Sup. Ct. 777,
that a crime which may be punished by imprisonment, with or with-
out hard labor, in a state prison or penitentiary, is an infamous crime.
It seems that the crime of receiving stolen property, knowing the
same to have been stolen, was not a felony at common law. Nejther
has it been made such by any legislation of congress; and the su-
preme court, in the case of Bannon v. U. S, 156 U. S. 464, 15 Sup.
Ct. 469, said:

“Neither does it necessarily follow that, because the punishment affixed to
an offense is infamous, the offense itself is thereby raised to the grade of
felony.”

But it is immaterial, for the purpose of this proceedmg, whether the
offense of which the respondent was convicted is a felony or not;
for it makes little difference whether a man is rendered infamous by
the mere fact of his committing a felony, or whether he is rendered
s0 by the commission of a misdemeanor to which congress, in direct
terms, has attached an infamous punishment, for the reason that the
punishment has always determined whether the crime of which a per-
son was convicted was infamous or not. There has been no attempt
to argue that the crime of which respondent was convicted: did not
involve moral turpitude.

In regard to the third point, it is claimed that, as a writ of error
had been sued out and a supersedeas granted, the judgment of con-
viction has no force whatever, and cannot be used as evidence of any
fact adjudicated by it. In support of this contention numerous cases
are cited, defining the status of judgments rendered in different stafe
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courts which operated as.a supersedeas. The principal case relied
on is that of People v, Treadwell, 5 Pac.. 686, wherein the supreme
court of California, in a proceeding to disbar an atterney, held that
under the statutes of that state an appeal duly perfected suspended
the operation of the judgment for all purposes. But it must be re-
membered that the judgment of conviction, to establish which a certi-
fied copy of the record was introduced on this hearing, was rendered"
in a district court of the United States, and that the writ of error
sued out was the common-law writ; hence, decisions of state courts,
based upon state statutes, are not authority. It is necessary, then,
to inquire as to what effect the common-law writ of error has upon
the judgment to reverse which it was sued out. And in discussing
this point I shall assume that the writ of error in the case of Joe
Kirby versus The United States was properly sued out of a court
having jurisdiction to review errors of law in that proceeding; for,
since the act of January 30, 1897, the circuit court of appeals of the
Eighth circuit would generally exercise the only appellate jurisdiction
over the judgment rendered against the defendant. “An appeal is a
process of civil-law origin, and removes a cause entirely, subjecting
the fact as well as the'law to a review and a retrial. A writ of error
is a process of common-law origin, and it removes nothing for re-
examination but the law.” 2 Story, Const. § 1762. In the case of
Sharon v. Hill, 26 Fed. 345 Judge Deady used the following lan-
guage:

‘“There is some confusion and contradiction in the language and ruling of the
authorities on this point, but this arises largely from the fact that the difference
in the original mode and effect of reviewing a judgment in an action at law,
and the decree of the court proceeding according to the civil law as a court
of chancery or admiralty, is often latterly overlooked. A judgment in an ac-
tion at law could only be reversed and annulled for error appearing on its face.
For this purpose a writ of error issued out of the court above to bring up the
record for examination. This was considered a new action to annul and set
aside the judgment of the court below, and if the writ was seasonably sued
out, and bail put into the action, it was a supersedeas, so far as to prevent an
execution from issuing on a judgment pending the writ of error, but left it
otherwise in full force between the parties, elther as a ground of action, a bar,
or an estoppel.”

See, also, 2 Bac, Abr. 87.

In Railway Co. v. Twombly, 100 U. 8, 81, the supreme court says:

“A writ of error to this court does not vacate the judgment below. That
continues in force until reversed, which is only done when errors are found in
g:;l I;:écord on which it rests, and which were committed prewous to its rendi-

It will thus be seen that the suing out of the writ of error in no
wise affected the judgment of conviction against the respondent.
The granting of the supersedeas simply stayed the execution of the
judgment until the writ of error could be heard. A proper respect
for the public, the legal profession, and this court renders it impera-
tive that the respondent should be disbarred as an attorney of this
court; and it is so ordered.
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UNITED STATES v. MURPHY.
(District Court, D. Delaware. January 19, 1898))
No. 2.

1. NEUTRALITY LAWS—INTERPRETATION.

The broad purpose of section 5286 of the United States Revised Statutes
is to prevent complications between this government and foreign powers.
It is not the intent of that section in any manner to check or interfere with
the commercial activities of citizens of the United States or of others re-
giding within the United States and interested in commercial transactions;
but to prevent the use of the soil or waters of the United States as a base
from which military expeditions or military enterprises shall be carried on
against foreign powers with which the United States is at peace.

2. SaME—PRrOVIDING MEANS FOR MILITARY ENTERPRISE.

Providing the means of transportation for a military enterprise to be car-
ried on from the United States against Spanish rule in Cuba is, within the
meaning of section 5286, preparing the means for such military enterprise
to be so carried on, and, if done with knowledge on the part of the person
8o providing the means of transportation, of the character and purposes of
such enterprise, is denounced by the statute.

8, SAME—“MiLiTARY ENTERPRISE” DEFINED.

‘Where a number of men, whether few or many, combine and band them-
selves together, and thereby organize themselves into a body, within the
limits of the United States, with a eommon intent or purpose on their part
at the time to proceed in a body to a foreign territory, there to engage in
carrying on armed hostilities, either by themselves or in co-operation with
other forees, against the territory or dominions of any foreign power with
which the United States is at peace, and with such intent or purpose pro-
ceed from the limits of the United States on their way to such territory,
either provided with arms or implements of war, or intending and expect-
ing and with preparation to secure them during transit, or before reaching
the scene of hostilities, all the essential elements of a military enterprise
exist within the meaning of section 5286.

€. SAME.

It is not necessary that the men shall be drilled or uniformed or prepared
for efficient service, nor that they shall have been organized, according to
the tacties, as infantry, artillery or cavalry. It is sufficient that the mili-
tary enterprise shall be begun or set on foot within the United States; and
it is not necessary that the organization of the body as a military enterprise
shall be completed or perfected within the Unitéd States. Nor is it neces-
sary that all of the persons composing the military enterprise shall be
brought in personal contact with each other within the limits of the United
States; nor that they shall all leave those limits at the same point. It is
sufficient that by previous arrangement or agreement, whether by conver-
sation, correspondence or otherwise, they become combined and organized
for the purposes mentioned, and that by concerted action, though proceeding
from different portions of this country, they meet at a designated point
either on the high seas or within the limits of the United States.

5. S8AME—TRANSPORTATION OF MILITARY ENTERPRISE.

A vessel may at the same time be engaged in transporting a military
enterprise and also a cargo of arms and munitions of war, and while the
transportation of the latter is lawful, the transportation of the former is
unlawful, if carried on for the purpose of engaging in armed hostilities
against the Spanish government in Cuba.

6. SamMe—VENUE.

If a military enterprise within the definition above given was begun or
set on foot in the United States for the purpose of committing hostilities in
Cuba against the Spanish government in that island, whether in co-opera-
tion with the Cuban insurgents, or by itself, although such military enter-
. 84 F.—39
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prise may never have reached the shores of Cuba, and if the defendant pre-
pared, within the District of Delaware, and with knowledge on his part
then and there of the unlawful nature of the enterprise, the means of trans-
porting such military enterprise from the high seas off Barnegat, either for
the whole or any part of the Way to Cuba, he violated section 5286.

7. ReasonasLE DousT.
Reasonable doubt defined.

This was an indictment against Edward Murphy for v101at10n of
Rev. St. § 5286.

Lewis C. Vandegrift, U. 8. Dist. Atty.
Geo. Gray, Herbert H. Ward, and Andrew C. Gray, for defendant.

BRADFORD, District Judge. Gentlemen of the Jury: The in-
dictment in this case charges Edward Murphy, the defendant, with
violating section 5286 of the Revised Statutes of the United States.
That section comprises certain provisions of the legislation by con-
gress commonly known as the neutrality laws of the United States.
It provides that “every person who, within the territory or jurisdic-
tion of the United States, begins, or sets on foot, or provides or pre-
pares the means for, any military expedition or enterprise, to be car-
ried on from therce against the territory or dominions of any for-
eign prince or state, or of any colony, district, or people, with whom
the United States are at peace, shall be deemed guilty of a high
misdemeanor,” &c. The indictment originally contained eight
counts, of which six, namely, the first, third, fourth, sixth, seventh
and eight were, before you were impaneled, disposed of on demur-
rer; leaving for present consideration only the remaining counts,
namely, the gsecond and fifth. The second count charges that the
defendant on or about the fifth day of August, 1896, “did wilfully,
knowingly and unlawfully provide the means for a certain other
military expedition, to be carried on from within the territory and
jurisdiction of the United States, to wit, from the District of Dele-
ware, against the territory and dominions of the King of Spain, a
foreign prince, or state, with whom the United States were then and
are now at peace, the means provided by the said Edward Murphy
being the steamship Laurada, of which he was then and there mas-
ter, and her crew, of which he was then and there in command and
control; the said Edward Murphy remaining master of the said
Laurada and in command and control of her crew during the several
weeks immediately subsequent to the said fifth day of August, A.
D. eighteen hundred and ninety six, during which said last men-
tioned time the said military expedition was being conveyed and
transported by the said steamship Laurada, of which he was master
as aforesaid, from within the territory and jurisdiction of the Unit-
ed States, to wit, from the District of Delaware, to and against the
island of Cuba, a dominion of the said King of Spain, a foreign
prince, or state, with whom the United States were then and are now
at peace; contrary to the form of the act of Congress,” &c. This
count, in short, charges that the defendant wilfully, knowingly and
unlawfully, provided the means for a military expedition to be car-
ried on from the District of Delaware to and against the island of
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Cuba, a dominion of the King of Spain, with whom the United
States then was and still is at peace. A conviction of the defend-
ant under the second count could not be justified in the absence of
evidence showing that an expedition, for which he provided the
means, was to be carried on from the District of Delaware. No evi-
dence has been adduced that any expedition, military or otherwise,
was to be or was carried on from the District of Delaware. You
are therefore instructed by the court to render a verdict of not guilty
as to the second count.

The fifth count charges that the defendant on the fifth day of
August, 1896, “did, within the territory and jurisdiction of the Unit-
ed States, to wit, at the said District of Delaware, wilfully and un-
lawfully prepare the means for a certain other military enterprise to
be carried on from thence against the territory and dominions of a
foreign prince, or state, with whom the United States were then
and are now at peace, to wit, against the colony and district of Cuba,
which said colony and district at the time herein mentioned was and
still is a part of the territory and dominions of the King of Spain,
the said United States then and there being at peace with the said
state and with the said King of Spain; that the said Edward Mur-
phy so prepared the means for such military enterprise in that he,
on or about the date last aforesaid, being master of a certain steam
vesgel known as the ‘Laurada’ and in command of said vessel and her
crew at the District of Delaware aforesaid, did then and there pro-
ceed with the said vessel and crew down the Delaware River into
the Atlantic ocean and thence northward on the high seas off the
coast of New Jersey where the said vessel was met under precon-
certed arrangement by a certain steam launch known as the ‘Rich-
ard K. Fox’ containing men, and a certain lighter containing arms
and ammunition and towed by a certain steam tug known as the
‘Dolphin,” which said men and arms and ammunition were then
and there transferred to the said ‘Laurada’ and thence carried by
it to or mear to the island of Navassa in the Caribbean sea where
the said men and arms and ammunition were transferred from the
said ‘Laurada’ to a certain steam vessel known as the ‘Dauntless’
and by it landed on the shore of Cuba, the said men acting together
under a preconcerted arrangement and he, the said Edward Murphy,
well knowing and intending that the said men and arms and am-
munition should be so transported and transferred and finally land-
ed on the island of Cuba for the purpose of effecting the said mili-
tary enterprise as aforesaid and making war upon the territory and
dominions of the King of Spain; contrary to the act of Congress,”
&ec. 'This count charges, in substance, that the defendant on the
fifth day of August, 1896, knowingly, wilfully and unlawfully pre-
pared the means within the District of Delaware for a military en-
terprise to be carried on from the United States against the island
of Cuba, a dominion of the King of Spain, with whom the United
States then was and still is at peace; the means so prepared being
the steam vessel Laurada and her crew. The count does not charge
that the defendant began or set on foot a military enterprise, but
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that he prepared the means for a military enterprise. In order to
justify a verdict of guilty you must be fully satisfied from the evi-
dence in the case that all the necessary ingredients of the alleged
offence existed or occurred. It is necessary that it shall appear to
your satisfaction that on or about the fifth day of August, 1896, the
defendant prepared means; that the defendant prepared such means
within the District of Delaware; that the means so prepared were
means for a military enterprise to be carried on from the territory
or waters of the United States; that such enterprise was to be car-
ried on against the territory or dominions of the King of Spain in
the island of Cuba; that the United States was at peace with Spain
at the time the defendant so prepared means; and that the defend-
ant knew, at the time he prepared such means, the character and
purpose of such enterprise. The court takes judicial notice and in-
structs you that at the time of the alleged offence the United States
was at peace with Spain; that the island of Cuba was at that time
and still is part of the territory or dominions of the King of Spain;
that at that time an armed insurrection or rebellion existed in Cuba
against the Spanish authority and government in that island, and
warlike hostilities were then and there in progress between the Cuban
insurgents, on the one hand, and the military forces of the King of
Spain, on the other. It appears from uncontradicted evidence in
the case, of the effect of which, however, you are the ultimate judges,
that the defendant was on the fifth day of August, 1896, the master
of the Laurada, and that he then controlled her crew and her move-
ments and thereafter continued in such control until after that ves-
sel left the island of Navassa, after having transferred the men and
munitions of war to the steam vessel Dauntless at or near that is-
land. It further appears from the testimony, without contradiction,
that on the fifth day of August, 1896, the Laurada with her crew was
in the Delaware river opposite the city of Wilmington, and within
the District of Delaware, and that about five or six o’clock in the even-
ing of that day the defendant boarded her and assumed control as her
master, and thereafter continued to ¢ontrol her crew and her move-
ments as above mentioned.

Providing the means of transportation for a military enterprise to
be carried on from the United States against Spanish rule in Cuba
is, within the meaning of section 5286 of the Revised Statutes of the
United States, under which the defendant has been indicted, prepar-
ing the means for such military enterprise to be so carried on, and,
if done with knowledge, on the part of the person so providing the
meang of transportation, of the character and purpose of such enter-
prise, is denounced by the statute. If you shall be satisfied by the
evidence in the case that the men taken on board of the Laurada on
the high seas off Barnegat constituted a military enterprise, as here-
inafter defined, from the United States against the Spanish author-
ities in Cuba, and, further, that the defendant, with knowledge of
the character and purpose of such enterprise, and with intent to fur-
nish transportation for it, took the Laurada with her crew from Wil-
mington to the place of transshipment on the high seas off Barnegat,
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you should render a verdict of guilty. But unless you should be
satisfied from the evidence in the case, beyond reasonable doubt,
that all of the requisite ingredients or elements of the alleged offence
existed, you should render a verdict of not guilty. The broad pur-
pose of section 5286 is to prevent complications between this gov-
ernment and foreign powers. It is not the intent of that section in
any manner to check or interfere with the commercial activities of
citizens of the United States or of others residing within the United
States and interested in commercial transactions. It is not an of-
fence against the United States to transport arms, ammunition and
munitions of war from this country to any foreign country, whether
they are to be used in war or not; nor is it an offence against the
United States for individuals to leave this country with intent to
enlist in foreign military service; nor is it an offence against the
United States to transport persons out of this country and land them
in foreign countries, although such persons have an intent to enlist
in foreign armies; nor is it an offence against the United States to
transport from this country persons intending to enlist in foreign
armies, and munitions of war, in the same ship. The purpose of
the section in question is to prevent the use of the soil or waters of
the United States as a base from which military expeditions or mili-
tary enterprises shall be carried on against foreign powers with
. which the United States is at peace. 'What it prohibits is a mili-
tary expedition or a military enterprise from this country against
any foreign power at peace with the United States. It does not
prohibit the transportation from this country in the same ship of
few or many men whose known intention before leaving our shores
is to engage in hostilities against the Spanish forces in Cuba, pro-
vided that such men do not constitute a military expedition or a
military enterprise against the dominion of the King of Spain in
that island. If they go from this country to Cuba merely as indi-
viduals and without concert of action between them, although for
the purpose of taking part in such hostilities, no crime or offence
against the United States attaches to anyone who has provided the
means of their transportation with full knowledge, at the time he
provided such means, of their purpose in securing such transporta-
tion. But if the men so transported are so combined and organized
as to constitute a military expedition or a military enterprise against
the dominion of the King of Spain in Cuba, the furnishing of the
means of transportation with knowledge, on the part of the person
furnishing such means, of the character and purpose of such expe-
dition or enterprise, is an offence against the United States punish-
able under the section in question. A military expedition or a
military enterprise may consist of few or many men. Eighteen or
twenty four men may compose such an expedition or enterprise as
well as eighteen hundred or twenty four hundred. The existence
or character ‘of the military expedition or the military enterprise
does not require concerted action on the part of a large number of
individuals, The defendant, as before stated, is charged in the fifth
count, not with preparing the means for a military expedition, but
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with preparing the means for a military enterprise. The words
“military enterprise” are somewhat broader in meaning than the
words “military ‘expedition.” Where a number of men, whether
few or many, combine and band themselves together, and thereby
organize themselves into a body, within the limits of the United
States, with a common intent or purpose on their part at the time
to proceed in a body to foreign territory, there to engage in carrying
on armed hostilities, either by themselves or in co-operation with
other forces, against the territory or dominions of any foreign pow-
er with which the United States is at peace, and with such intent or
purpose proceed from the limits of the United States on their way
to such territory, either provided with arms or implements of war,
or intending and expecting and with preparation to secure them dur-
ing transit, or before reaching the scene of hostilities, in such case
all the essential elements of a military enterprise exist. 1t is not
necessary that the men shall be drilled or uniformed or prepared for
efficient service, nor that they shall have been organized, according
to the tactics, as infantry, artillery or cavalry. It is sufficient that
the military enterprise shall be begun or set on foot within the
United States; and it is not necessary that the organization of the
body as a military enterprise shall be completed or perfected within
the United States. Nor is it necessary that all of the persons com-
posing the military enterprise should be brought in personal con-
tact with each other within the limits of the United States; nor that
they should all leave those limits at the same point, It is sufficient
that by previous arrangement or agreement, whether by conversa-
tion, correspondence or otherwise, they become combined and or-
ganized for the purposes mentioned, and that by concerted action,
though proceeding from different portions of this country, they meet
at a designated point either on the high seas or within the limits
of the United States. Under such circumstances a military enter-
prise to be carried on from the United States exists within the mean-
ing of the law. [The court here took up and disposed of various in-
structions prayed for on either side, and proceeded.] I now call
your attention, gentlemen, to some of the evidence in the case, of the
weight and effect of which, however, you, and not the court, are to
judge. On Sunday, the ninth day of August, 1896, the Laurada, the
Dolphin, the Richard K. Fox and the Green Point all met together
on the high seas some ten or twenty miles off Barnegat. Did these
vessels meet accidentally, on the one hand, or, on the other, by pre-
arrangement and in accordance with some plan agreed upon in the
United States? Rand, the chief mate of the Laurada, testified that
lie had a conversation with the defendant in Philadelphia, and in-
dicated upon a chart where the Laurada should go, after leaving
Wilmington, and that the point 8o fixed was on the coast of New Jer-
sey. It appears from the uncontradicted testimony that the Laurada
left Wilmington on the fifth day of August, 1896, under the com-
mand and control of the defendant and proceeded down to a point
at or near Dan Baker shoal in the District of Delaware, where she
took on beard four surf boats, and then proceeded to sea. There is
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no evidence showing that, after leaving the District of Delaware,
and before arriving at the point off Barnegat, any communication
was received either by the defendant or any person on the Laurada
from any outside source. Horton testified that the Richard K. Fox
about nine or ten o’clock in the evening of the eighth day of August,
1896, started out to sea from Gardener’s Landing, at or near At-
lantic City, with a number of men, who, with the exception of the
crew of the Fox, did not return; and that John D. Hart who, ac-
cording to the testimony of Rand, had transferred him, Rand, from
the Bermuda to the Laurada, called out to the men who were about.
starting out on the Fox at the time above mentioned, “Cast off your
lines and go to sea and you know the rest” Bruff testified that
about the first week in August, 1896, he made a sale of arms and
delivered them on the eighth day of August at pier No. 39 East
River, New York City; that the sale amounted to about $50,000, and
included 2100 Remington rifles, 250 Remington carbines, 250 Manser
rifles, 250 carbine slings, 858,000 cartridges of different sizes, 10
sets of pack saddles and harness, a lot of electrical supplies includ-
ing wire and batteries, 2 Hotchkiss cannon with 500 rounds of can-
non ammunition, a quantity of vaseline and glycerine, 12 revolvers,
10 holsters and belts, 200 burlap bags, 6 shovels, 3 pickaxes and 20
bundles, the contents of which the witness did not know, but which
had been delivered to him and were by him delivered on the pier
mentioned. McAllister testified that he was in the towing and
transportation business in August, 1896, and at that time owned the
barge Green Point and the tug Dolphin; that a gentleman, known
as Mr. Cash, engaged the witness to take some ship stores from pier
No. 39, East River, New York City; that he went with the Dolphin,
towing the Green Point with this cargo, from the pier named out
to sea and reached the place to which he was going between eleven
and twelve o’clock on Saturday night, August 8, 1896; that he met
at the point of his destination a vessel and put the Green Point along-
side of that vessel which he believes to have been the Laurada; and
that the cargo was taken from the Green Point and put on board of
that vessel. McKillop testified that he was the master of the Dol
phin in August, 1896, and was on board of her on the trip testified
to by McAllister; that he had a pilot aboard whom he did not know;
that the witness did not know who put that pilot on board; that he
came aboard at the above mentioned pier; that he knew there was
fo be a pilot there; that he did not ask the pilot to show him any
license; that he got the Green Point at the above mentioned pier
and towed her around Sandy Hook, and some distance below that
point met the Laurada and the Richard K. Fox; that no signals were
exchanged when he met these vessels; that he “just run up and put
the barge alongside”; that the pilot gave him information as to the
boat which he was to place the Green Point alongside of; and that
the cargo carried on the Green Point was transferred to the Laurada.
Cowley testified that when the Fox came alongside of the Laurada
a gentleman from the former vessel asked the defendant “if he had
seen the other boat,” and that “at the time they were talking we
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gighted this other tow boat and a barge at her stern,” which were
the ‘Dolphin and the Green Point. You are the sole judges of the
weight to be given to all this testimony.

If you are satisfied from the evidence in the case that the men and
munitions of war, transferred to the Laurada on the high seas off
Barnegat were, pursuant to prearrangement in the United States,
forwarded from the United States to the point of such transfer and
there so transferred, and that the defendant was a party to such pre-
arrangement and knew of it before he left the District of Delaware
on the fifth day of August, 1896, it iy for you as reasonable men
to determine whether there was or was not a fixed purpose on the
part of the parties to such arrangement, for the accomplishment of
which the men and munitions of war were so transferred. If you
are satisfied that there was a fixed purpose and that the defendant
was, before he left the District of Delaware, aware of that purpose,
then you are to determine what that purpose was. Was it or not
to carry on merely a commercial venture or enterprise? If it was
merely to transport arms and munitions of war to be used in Cuba
against the Spanish forces, the purpose was lawful, and, while the
cargo might have been seized by Spanish cruisers, no offence against
the laws of the United States was committed. Unless you are fully
satisfied that the transaction in question was not merely a commer-
cial or industrial venture, you should acquit this defendant. And
if the men taken on the Laurada off Barnegat were only passengers,
althoughi their destination was Cuba and their purpose was either
to take part in armed hostilities against the Spanish forces, or, if
the men so taken on the Laurada were not a military enterprise,
but merely stevedores or men intended to handle the cargo, you
should acquit the defendant. But you must bear in mind that a
vessel may at the same time be engaged in transporting a military
enterprise and also a cargo of arms and munitions of war, and that,
while the transportation of the latter is lawful, the transportation
of the former is unlawful, if carried on for the purpose of engaging
in armed hostilities against the Spanish government in Cuba. The
fact that the cargo of arms and munitions of war on the Laurada
was in excess of the amount that could be used, in warlike operations,
by the men who were transferred to the Laurada off Barnegat is
not of itself inconsistent with the existence of a military enterprise
on the Laurada; though the existence of such military enterprise
must be proved beyond a reasonable doubt. Were or were not the
men, 8o transferred to the Laurada, merely stevedores or persons
intended to handle the cargo, legitimately transported as an indus-
trial or commercial venture? This question you are to decide from
the evidence in the case. It does not appear from the evidence to
whom the shipment of the arms and munitions of war from pier No.
39 East River was consigned; nor does it appear whether any bill
of lading accompanied the transaction; nor does it appear that the
men who were transferred off Barnegat to the Laurada and who went
on that vessel to or near Navassa, returned north after the Laurada
discharged her cargo into the Dauntless at or near that island.
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What, if any, inferences are to be drawn from these circumstances,
or from the testimony relating to the stowaways in the chain locker
of the Laurada, are for your determination only.

The burden rests upon the government to satisfy you, beyond a
reasonable doubt, that the men transferred to the Laurada off Barne-
gat were a military enterprise directed against the Spanish govern-
.ment in Cuba. The uncontradicted testimony shows that the Lau-
rada under the command and control of the defendant, after taking
on the surf boats within the District of Delaware, proceeded to a
point on the high seas off Barnegat and there received from the other
vessels, meeting her there, men and munitions of war. There is
some variance in the testimony as to the number of men there taken
on the Laurada. But whether that number be 18, 20 or 24 is wholly
unimportant. Rand, the chief mate of the Laurada, testified that
there were 18, and that he could not say that they were all Cubans;
that two of them were negroes; that he could not say that the rest
were Englishmen; that they talked English; and that some of them
were light and some dark. Cowley testified that he could not say
positively how many men were transferred to the Laurada from the
Fox off Barnegat, but that he learned there were about 20 or 24 of
them; that he could not say of what nationality they were, with the
exception of one of them whom he had known as a pilot in Cuba;
that they were dark complexioned people; and that they spoke a
foreign language as far as he knew. Nichols testified that 24 Cubans
were transferred at that place from the Fox to the Laurada. Roberts
testified that the men so transferred to the Laurada from the Fox
“were not more than 16 or something like that”; that he did not
know at that time of what nationality the majority of them were,
and that he subsequently ascertained that they were Cubans, from
having conversation with some of them. The weight and effect of
this testimony you are to determine. Rand testified that at the
place where the several vessels met off Barnegat he saw a man who,
he was told, was General Roloff; that he talked with him on the
voyage down to Navassa; that he answered to the name of Gen-
eral Roloff; that there was a man at the place of meeting off Barne-
gat called Captain by some and Capitan by others; that the men
who came with this person called him Capitan; that on the way
down to Navassa he saw some large boxes of the cargo which had
been transferred to the Laurada off Barnegat opened and small boxes
taken out; that at the point of meeting off Barnegat he saw Captain
(O’Brien of the Bermuda and also a man who was called Colonel
Nunez; that Captain O’Brien and the man called Colonel Nunez did
not go on the Laurada down to or near Navassa, but that they were
both on the Dauntless when the Laurada met her at or near that
island; that he was told by the defendant that “we had a certain
time to be at Navassa island”; that the Dauntless when met by tne
Laurada had canvas over her bow and canvas over her stern and
something over her smokestack; that while on the Laurada he be-
lieved he talked with some of the persons who had been taken on
board that vessel off Barnegat about digging trenches; that he knew
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“it was something about digging trenches and climbing hills. I
told them they wouldn’t find that as pleasant as going up eighth ave-
nue, New York;” that he does not think that he said in what place
trenches were to be dug; that he did not know, but only had an idea
where they were to be dug. It appears from the testimony of Bruff
that the arms and munitions of war which were transferred to the
Laurada included shovels and pickaxes. Cowley testified that on
the way down to Navassa there was a man on board the Laurada
called Capitan who had the men, who were transferred from the
Fox to the Laurada off Barnegat, in command; that on the way
down to Navassa the witness said to the Cuban pilot, who, according
to the testimony, had come on board of the Laurada off Barnegat,
“there comes a Spanish man-of-war;” to which he replied that “he
didn’t care for a Spanish man-of-war, they could whip all the Spanigh
man-of-war ships”; that the Cuban pilot, after reaching Navassa,
told the witness that they were going to Cuba “to fight the Span-
iards”; that during the voyage to Navassa the man called Capitan
and “those two young fellows who stowed away—before they stowed
away, they came to Captain Murphy’s room, the chart room, one
morning. They spoke English, I was painting the floor. They
looked over the chart, the map; and Capitan spoke in a foreign
language to these young fellows, and they allowed to Captain Mur-
phy that that was where they wanted to land in Cuba,” and that
“they pointed it out on the chart.” Nichols testified that when the
Fox came alongside of the Laurada off Barnegat, the men in the
former vessel were hungry, and that the defendant “told me to give
them something to eat, and I got a bucket full of coffee and lowered
it down on the boat, and a dish of meat and bread and sent it down
there;” that “Captain’” Sutro came on board the Laurada from the
Fox; that General Roloff, Colonel Nunez and the general’s valet came
in the Dolphin; that some of the men who, according to his testi-
mony, came with Captain Sutro, “went on board the barge and with
the erew of the barge, helped to put these boxes and bundles off it
on board the Laurada”; that Captain Sutro was in charge of the
men who came off the Fox; that a Cuban pilot was among them;
that the witness can talk a little in the Cuban language: that after
the cargo was discharged from the Green Point into the Laurada
Colonel Nunez and Captain O’Brien went in the Fox, and that the
Dolphin and Green Point went in another direction, and “we steamed
out to sea”; that one day while the Laurada was on her way down
to Navassa the witness “went down into the hold and Captain Sutro
and his men were down there sorting these boxes, taking things out
and getting small ones out of the larger ones. Then he opened
one of the lid boxes and it had cartridges in it, and those bundles
had machetes and there were rifles in there; and there was some-
thing like a cartridge that long (indicating), two of them, in a box;
‘and some saddles. © I saw those things”; that the men who had been
transferred from the Fox to the Laurada were all under Captain Sutro
and General Roloff, and that Roloff was over Sutro; that “the mess-
room was right opposite the cabin where the general stayed; and any
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time that these men would come where the general was and the gen-
eral would come out, the men would run away forwards. He didn’t
want them to stay there. He would tell the captain to keep them
where they belonged, he was commanding these men, and the gen-
eral was commanding the captain;” that the witness “spoke to Ri-
cardo, a little dark Cuban fellow on the Laurada and he said he was
going to Cuba to fight the Spaniards” Roberts testified that the
man called “Capitan” was in charge of the men who were transferred
to the Laurada off Barnegat and that General Roloff was over him;
that the Cuban pilot told him, the witness, that the men were going
to Cuba to fight the Spaniards.

All this testimony, gentlemen, is for your consideration. It is
solely your province to determine its weight and effect. While the
court brings to your attention some of the testimony, you are in-
structed that you are not in the least controlled by anything which
has been or shall be stated by the court in relation to the testimony
in this case. 'While it is my duty to call your attention to such por-
tions of the testimony as in the judgment of the court may aid you in
arriving at a just verdict, you are to give to the testimony only such
weight and effect as you consider it entitled to. The court instructs
you that the testimony of Cowley, to the effect that the Cuban pilot
after the return of the Dauntless to the Laurada at or near Navassa
told him that “they landed men safe in Cuba,” is to be treated by you
solely as evidence tending to show the purpose and character of
the enterprise, and not as evidence of the fact of the landing of men
in Cuba. It is unnecessary that the government should prove thai
a military enterprise should have actually reached the shores of
Cuba. 1If the destination of a military enterprise was that island
it is wholly unimportant whether it reached Cuba or not. You will
recollect the testimony relating to the transferring of the cargo and
men on board of the Laurada to the Dauntless at or near Navassa.
and the furnishing there by the Laurada of coal for the use of the
Dauntless, and also the testimony relating to the stowaways in the
chain locker of the Laurada. It is unnecessary that I should longer
detain you by recapitulating that testimony. Was or was not the
body of men who were transferred off Barnegat to the Laurada a
military enterprise against the Spanish government in Cuba? Were
they or not men who had combined and banded themselves together
and thereby organized themselves into a body within the limits of
the United States with a common intent or purpose on their part
at the time, to proceed in a body to Cuba, there to engage in carry-
ing on armed hostilities against the Spanish government there, either
by themselves or in co-operation with the Cuban insurgents, and
were they or not provided with arms and implements of war which
they might use in Cuba as occasion required? If so, they were a
military enterprise denounced by section 5286 of the Revised Siat-
utes of the United States. 'Were or not the men who were conveyed
on the Laurada to the Dauntless, and transferred to the Dauntless.
free agents, on the one hand, or, on the other, subject to authority
of a military character? These questions are for your determina-
tion. If you find that the men taken on board the Laurada off Barne-
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gat were not a military enterprise from the United States against
Spanish rule in Cuba, or, if you have a reasonable doubt whether
such was the fact, the defendant must be acquitted. But if you
are satisfied beyond a reasonable doubt that these men constituted,
within the definition heretofore given to you by the court, a military
enterprise from the United States against the authorities of Spain
in Cuba, although such enterprise may never have reached the shores
of Cuba, the next and final question with which you are confronted
is whether or not the defendant, at the time he provided the Laurada
and her crew within the District of Delaware as means for the trans-
portation of the unlawful military enterprise, if such you find it
to be, had knowledge of its real character. The defendant, admit-
tedly, was in command and control of the Laurada and her move-
ments from the time she left the District of Delaware until after
she had transferred her cargo of arms and munitions of war, together
with the men taken on board of her off Barnegat, to the Dauntless.
You are familiar with the testimony as to occurrences and statements
made or happening on the Laurada during her voyage to Navassa.
If the men and arms and munitions of war were received by the
Laurada off Barnegat in pursuance of a prearranged plan or scheme,
it is for you to determine whether or not that plan or scheme, what-
ever it may have been, was abandoned during the voyage of the Lau-
rada from off Barnegat to Navassa. If you shall be satisfied that
such scheme or plan, if any existed, was not so abandoned and that
the real nature of the enterprise was apparent to the defendant as
well as to the others on board of the Laurada at any time after the
Laurada left the high seas off Barnegat and before she finally left
Navassa, and that the defendant accepted the situation as a matter
of course, without the expression of surprise, remonstrance or pro-
test, it will be for you to determine whether this circumstance would
or would not have a tendency to show knowledge on the part of the
defendant, before the Laurada left the District of Delaware, of the
real nature, character and purpose of the enterprise, and if so, it
should be taken with all the other evidence in the case.

If, from all the evidence in the case, you shall be satisfied, beyond
a reasonable doubt, that a military enterprise, within the definition
given to you by the court, had been begun or set on foot in the United
States for the purpose of committing hostilities in Cuba against the
Spanish government in that island, whether in co-operation with the
Cuban insurgents, or by itself, although such military enterprise may
never have reached the shores of Cuba, and that the defendant pre-
pared within the District of Delaware, and with knowledge on his
part then and there of the unlawful nature of the enterprise, the
means, namely, the Laurada and her crew, of transporting such mili-
tary enterprise from the high seas off Barnegat, either for the whole
or any part of the way to Cuba, you should render a verdict of guilty.
If you are not so satisfied, you should render a verdict of not guilty.

The commission of a criminal offence can be shown by circumstan-
tial evidenee as well as by direct evidence, provided the circumstan-
ces proved, together with reasonable inferences drawn from them,
are such as to leave no reasonable doubt in the minds of a jury that
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the defendant is guilty. You are to take into comsideration all
the evidence in this case, whether direct or circumstantial, together
with all reasonable inferences to be drawn from that evidence, and,
upon the evidence taken as a whole, determine upon your verdict.
If that evidence does not satisfy you, beyond a reasonable doubt, that
the defendant is guilty of the offence with which he is charged under
the fifth count in the indictment, it will be your duty to render a
verdict of not guilty. If, however, that evidence does so satisfy you,
beyond a reasonable doubt, it will be your duty to render against the
defendant a verdict of guilty in manner and form as he stands in-
dicted under the fifth count.

A reasonable doubt is not a doubt created by the ingenuity of
counsel or of the jury; nor is it a whimsical, arbitrary or speculative
doubt; nor a trivial supposition; nor a mere conjecture or guess;
nor is it such a doubt as is born of a merciful inclination to permit
the defendant to escape the penalty of the law, nor one permitted by
sympathy for him or those dependent upon him. The court charges
you that the law presumes the defendant innocent until proven guilty
beyond a reasonable doubt. If you can reconcile the evidence be-
fore you upon any reasonable hypothesis consistent with the defend-
ant’s innocence, you should do so, and in that case find him not
guilty. You are further instructed that you cannot find the defend-
ant guilty unless from all the evidence you believe him guilty beyond
a reasonable doubt. The court further charges you that a reason-
able doubt is a doubt based on reason and which is reasonable in
view of all the evidence. If, after an impartial comparison and con-
gideration of all the evidence you can candidly say that you are not
satisfied of the defendant’s guilt, you have a reasonable doubt; but
if, after such impartial comparison and consideration of all the evi-
dence you can truthfully say that you have a settled and fixed con-
viction of the defendant’s guilt, such as you would be willing to
act upon in the more weighty and important matters relating to your
own affairs, you have no reasonable doubt. The guilt or innocence
of the defendant is to be determined by you as intelligent and con-
scientious men upon the evidence adduced in this case, and upon that
alone. No public clamor, no sentiment of hostility or sympathy, no
consideration of consequences which may result from your verdict,
should be permitted in any manner to influence your deliberations.
You will well and truly try the traverse joined between the United
States of America and Edward Murphy, the defendant, and a true
verdiet give according to your evidence. The counsel engaged in
this ecase have well and faithfully performed their duty. The court
now closes its charge to you. Upon you rests the grave responsibil-
ity of deciding this case according to the facts, under the law as laid
down to you by the court.
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UNITED STATES v. CARTER.
(Circuit Court, 8. D. New York. November 15, 1897}

MURDER—CoMMISSION ON UNITED STATES BATTLESHIP—EXCLUSIVE JURISDIC-
TION—CESSION OF TERRITORY BY STATE LEGISLATURE.

Rev. St. § 5339, subd. 1, provides that “every person who commits mur-
der within any fort, arsenal, dock yards, magazine, or in any other place
or district of the county under the exclusive jurisdiction of the United
States, * * * ghall suffer death.” C. was indicted under this section for
a murder committed on board the United States battleship Indiana, then
moored at Cob Dock, being within territory which had not been purchased
by the United States, under Const. art. 1, § 8, subd. 17, but over which ex-
clusive jurisdiction had been ceded to the United States by the New York
legislature. Held, that the circult court for the Southern district of New
York had exclusive jurisdiction of the offense charged.

Indictment for Murder,

There are two indictments against the defendant, Philip F. Carter, for mur-
der; one under section 5391 of the Revised Statutes of the United States, and
the other under subdivision 1 of section 5339 of the same statute, which reads
as follows: “Every person who commits murder within any fort, arsenal, dock
yards, magazine, or in any other place or district of the county under the ex-
clusive jurisdiction of the United States, * * * shall suffer death.”” Upon
being arraigned to plead, the defendant pleaded not guilty to the indictment
under section 5391, and to the Indictment under section 5339 he interposed a
plea to the jurisdiction of the court, alleging as a reason therefor that the of-
fense charged in the indictment was not committed in any river, haven, basin,
or bay out of the jurisdiction of any particular state, nor within any place pur-
chased by the United States with the consent of the legislature of the state
of New York for the erection of forts, arsenals, and other needful buildings,
nor in any place within the exelusive jurisdiction of the United States, but.
on the contrary, in a place within the exclusive jurisdiction of the state of New
York; and demands judgment that defendant be discharged. To this plea the
government files a replication, claiming exclusive jurisdiction in the United
States of the offense charged in the indictment, and sets forth in support there-
of the several acts of the legislature of the state of New York, and the various
deeds of cession, whereby jurisdiction was ceded to the United States in and
over the premises in which this offense was committed; and demands that de-
fendant answer to the indictment. To this replication the defendant demurs
upon two grounds: (1) That the place where the murder was committed was
within the jurisdiction of the state of New York, and not within the jurisdiction
of the United States, the same not having been purchased by the United States,
with the consent of the state of New York, as required by article 1, § 8, subd.
17, of the federal constitution; and (2) that a war vessel is not a place, within
the meaning of the United States statutes. Further facts appear in the opinion.

‘Wallace Macfarlane, U, 8. Dist. Atty.
J. Grattan MacMahon, for defendant.

TENNEY, District Judge. The question here submitted is this:
Has the United States circuit court for the Southern district of New
York exclusive jurisdiction of the offense charged in the indictment,
under section 5339 of the Revised Statutes, or must the defendant be
tried for such offense in the state courts of New York? This alleged
murder was committed on board the United States battleship Indiana,
June 30, 1897. The vessel was then the property of the United States,
and was moored at Cob Dock, in the waters of Wallabout Bay, in the
East River. It is conceded that the waters of Wallabout Bay are



